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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

St. Philomena's Cathedral (now St. Frances Cabrini Roman Catholic
Church) is a 1908 Spanish Renaissance Revival building on the northeast
corner of Tenth and William Streets, one mile south of downtown Omaha.
Designed by Thomas Rogers Kimball and built at an approximate cost of
$40,000 by contractor Thomas Herd, St. Philomena's is a 45' x 123'
stuccoed and limestone-clad brick structure whose roof apex rises to
a height of 30 feet.

The ornate, low-relief limestone sculpture which highlights the
round-arched portal, central window surround, and parapet of the main
facade is also employed in the 60-foot, octagonal, copper-domed bell
tower (see photo 1). The low one-story side walls, defined by the
projecting eaves of the sanctuary's red-tiled gabled roof, are punc-
tuated by segmental-headed, double-hung windows filled with stained glass.
Side bays are also established by stuccoed brick piers which project
through the roof's surface and are capped by red-tiled pyramidal roofs
that tie into the main roof surface.

The exterior rhythm established by piers is repeated within the
austere nave's interior by rafters and beams set against a dark-stained,
tongue—and-groove ceiling (see photo 3). The chancel arch is a classical
element which breaks the unadorned plaster walls and frames an altar
of Carrara marble (see photo 4). An 1869 Johnson and Son pipe organ——
the first such musical instrument in Omaha, if not in Nebraska--is
located in a loft at the nave's rear.

In 1910, a brick and stucco "Priest's Home' was erected to the east
of the church at a cost of $10,000 (see photo 2). Also designed by
Thomas Rogers Kimball in the Spanish mode, and constructed by B. J.
Bock, this 27' x 39', two-story structure is void of major ornamenta-
tion. The smooth walls are regularly punctuated by rectangular windows
and red-tiled awnings. Tile-covered hipped roof sections with exposed
rafters extend beyond the walls, the only exception being the south
wall which ends in a split curvilinear gable,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Designed by the nationally recognized Omaha architect Thomas Rogers
Kimball and erected in 1908, St, Philomena's Cathedral is significant as
an early work in the Spanish Renaissance Revival, a style which reached
its zenith in American architecture between 1915-1940. Although the massing
is similar to many Mission Style structures that preceded it in the West,
surface ornamentation and the asymmetrical composition of the main facade
categorize the church as belonging to the later revival period. Signifi-
cance in the area of religion is attained through the vital role the
building and its parish have served for Roman Catholicism in Omaha.

If legend holds true, the first clergyman in what is now Nebraska
was the Franciscan friar, Juan de Padila, who accompanied Coronado in
1541 during his search for the fabled Kingdom of Quivira. The first Roman
Catholic church in Omaha was constructed in 1856, at which time the Omsha

Nebraskan reported: "It is somewhat significant that the first public

house of worship now in progress of ~building in Omaha City, and perhaps
in the Territory, is a Catholic church, a nice fine brick building on -
park place.”" This church, St. Mary's, was a structure 24 by 40 feet, its
outer brick facade and inner decor indicative of the severity of the life
of the day.

St. Mary's was elevated to the rank of cathedral in 1859, shortly
before the Catholic community in Omaha began rapid growth. In 1868,
a larger cathedral was dedicated, but Omaha's population expanded so
greatly that an even larger building was needed shortly afterward.- A
new cathedral, St. Philomena's, was built in 1908 at a cost of $41,500,
with furnishings taken from the old church. Cathedral status was maintained
for an interim period until St. Cecilia's Cathedral (listed in the
National Register January 25, 1979) was substantially completed.

In 1958 the name of the church was changed to St. Frances Cabrini,
since data substantiating Philomena's history had not been authenticated.
The new name honored Mother Cabrini, the first American citizen canonized.
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